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Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Audit Committee 
Economic Development Bank for Puerto Rico: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, the major fund and 
the remaining fund information of Economic Development Bank for Puerto Rico (the Bank), a component 
unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, which 
collectively comprise the Bank’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities, the major fund and the remaining fund 
information of Economic Development Bank for Puerto Rico as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the 
respective changes in its financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended, in accordance 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

 

 
 

KPMG LLP 
American International Plaza 
Suite 1100 
250 Muñoz Rivera Avenue 
San Juan, PR 00918-1819 
 

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership, 
the U.S. member firm of KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
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This financial discussion contains an analysis of the statements of net position of the Economic Development 
Bank for Puerto Rico (the Bank) as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and its changes in net position for the years then 
ended. The information included in this section should be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements 
of the Bank and its notes. 

The business-type activities of the Bank are accounted for as enterprise funds, which include the activities of the 
Bank’s principal operating fund and those of the Bank’s blended component unit, Economic Development Bank 
Capital Investment (EDBCI). EDBCI was created to account for and focus separately on the activities and 
investments in local equity and venture capital funds. The required financial statements for an enterprise fund are 
as follows: statement of net position; statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position; and statement 
of cash flows. These financial statements report information using accounting methods similar to those used by 
private financial institutions. 

The statement of net position includes all the Bank’s assets and liabilities, classified as current, noncurrent, 
capital assets, and net position. This statement provides information as of a specific date about the nature and 
amount of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis 
for evaluating the Bank’s capital structure. 

The statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position includes revenue earned and expenses incurred 
by the Bank for a specific period of time (12 operating months beginning on July 1 and ending on June 30). This 
statement measures the results of the Bank’s operation and can be used to determine whether the Bank has 
successfully recovered all its costs through user fees and other charges. This statement distinguishes interest and 
noninterest revenue and expenses. 

The statement of cash flows reports cash receipts, cash payments, and changes in cash resulting from operations, 
noncapital financing, capital and related financing, and investing activities. This statement provides information 
about the Bank’s cash flows and how cash is obtained, used, and what was the change in cash balance during the 
reporting period beginning on July 1 and ending on June 30. 

Financial Highlights 

 Gross loan portfolio increased $35.1 million in 2014 or 11.3%, from $309.5 million in 2013 to 
$344.6 million in 2014. 

 Interest income from loans amounted to $15.3 million in 2014, a $1 million or approximately 7.2% 
increase from $14.3 million in 2013. 

 Net income increased $3.3 million in 2014 or 130.2%, from 2.6 million in 2013 to $5.9 million in 2014. 
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Comparison of 2014 and 2013 Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position 

Condensed financial information on assets, liabilities, and net position is presented below (dollar amounts in 
thousands): 

Increase (decrease)
Net position 2014 2013 Amount Percentage

Current assets $ 339,895   143,231   196,664   137.31%
Noncurrent assets 750,350   1,151,936   (401,586)  (34.86)

Total assets 1,090,245   1,295,167   (204,922)  (15.82)

Current liabilities 468,298   416,792   51,506   12.36
Noncurrent liabilities 455,950   718,293   (262,343)  (36.52)

Total liabilities 924,248   1,135,085   (210,837)  (18.57)

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets (110)  (530)  420   79.25
Restricted for special loan programs 18,077   13,259   4,818   36.34
Unrestricted 148,030   147,353   677   0.46

Net position $ 165,997   160,082   5,915   3.69
 

At June 30, 2014, the Bank’s total assets were $1,090.2 million ($57.9 million from EDBCI) compared to 
$1,295.2 million at June 30, 2013 ($286.4 million from EDBCI). The decrease of $205 million represents 15.8% 
of the 2013 total assets balance. 

Total loan portfolio increased by 11.3% when compared to balances as of June 30, 2013. Loan disbursements 
decreased from $191.9 million in 2013 to $177.5 million in 2014, while principal collected on loans decreased 
from $143.7 million for fiscal year 2013 to $127.5 million for fiscal year 2014. The related allowance for loan 
losses decreased by $1.7 million or 4.8% of the 2013 balance. The net loan portfolio increased by $36.8 million. 

Interest-bearing deposits with other banks, commercial paper, investments, and securities purchased under 
agreements to resell decreased by $242.1 million when compared to balances as of June 30, 2013, mainly due to 
a decrease of $261.8 million in promissory notes. 

At June 30, 2014, the Bank’s total liabilities were $924.2 million compared to $1,135.1 million at June 30, 2013. 
The decrease of $210.9 million represents 18.6% of the 2013 total liabilities. 

Total time deposits were $411.7 million as of June 30, 2014. Time deposits consist primarily of certificates of 
deposit of public funds from other governmental institutions, which totaled $390.3 million. Deposits from other 
financial institutions were $21.4 million. Total time deposits increased by $81.4 million. As of year-end, the total 
promissory notes and other note payable balance was $450.1 million. 

Securities sold under agreement to repurchase decreased by $30.5 million, from $76.2 million in 2013 to 
$45.7 million in 2014. Fluctuations in these securities are due to specific market conditions, which provide the 
Bank with funds and investment opportunities to generate net revenue. 
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The Bank’s net position was $166 million at June 30, 2014, an increase of $5.9 million or 3.7% when compared 
to June 30, 2013. Additional information about net position composition is presented in note 11 to the basic 
financial statements. 

Comparison of 2014 and 2013 Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Condensed financial information on revenue, expenses, and changes in net position is presented below (in 
thousands): 

Revenue, expenses, and Increase (decrease)
changes in net position 2014 2013 Amount Percentage

Interest income from loans $ 15,293   14,268   1,025   7.18%
Interest income from investments 35,832   53,562   (17,730)  (33.10)

Total interest income 51,125   67,830   (16,705)  (24.63)

Total noninterest income 2,918   1,075   1,843   171.44

Total operating revenue 54,043   68,905   (14,862)  (21.57)

Provision for loan losses 10,960   10,788   172   1.59
Total interest expense 29,559   44,102   (14,543)  (32.98)
Total noninterest expenses 12,425   13,903   (1,478)  (10.63)

Total operating expenses 52,944   68,793   (15,849)  (23.04)

Operating income 1,099   112   987   881.25

Capital contribution 4,816   2,458   2,358   95.93

Net income and change
in net position $ 5,915   2,570   3,345   130.16

 

For the year ended June 30, 2014, the Bank presents an operating income of $1.1 million when compared to the 
operating income of $112,000 for the year ended June 30, 2013. The increase in operating income resulted from 
the net effect of the following: 

(a) Interest Income 

Total interest income decreased by approximately 24.6% or $16.7 million, from $67.8 million in 
2013 to $51.1 million in 2014. This decrease in interest income was mainly the result of decreased 
average transaction volumes during the fiscal year, with basically no change in average interest rates. 

(b) Noninterest Income 

Noninterest income increased by approximately $1.8 million, from $1.1 million in fiscal year 2013 to 
$2.9 million income in 2014. This increase was mainly due to an increase in the net realized and 
unrealized gains on investments of $2.1 million. 
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The increase in the net realized and unrealized gains on investment results from the combined effect 
of a $894,000 decrease in net unrealized gains of investment securities and a $3 million increase in 
net realized gains from the disposition of investments. 

(c) Provision for Loan Losses 

Compared to 2013, the provision for loan losses shows an increase of $172,000. Impaired loans 
requiring an allowance for losses decreased by $4.7 million, from $47 million in 2013 to 
$42.3 million in 2014, and the specific reserve for these decreased by $1.7 million, from 
$15.3 million to $13.6 million. As a percentage of the total loans portfolio, impaired loans represent 
28.1% and 28% at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Loans charged off during fiscal year 2014 
increased by $5.4 million when compared to 2013, from $9.5 million in 2013 to $14.9 million in 
2014. As a percentage of the total loans portfolio, the allowance for loan losses represents 9.9% and 
11.5% at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

Loan collections decreased from $143.7 million during fiscal year 2013 to $127.5 million for fiscal 
year 2014. 

(d) Interest Expense 

Total interest expense decreased by 33% or $14.5 million, from $44.1 million in 2013 to 
$29.6 million in 2014. This decrease in interest expense was the result of decreased average principal 
balances owed. 

(e) Noninterest Expenses 

Noninterest expenses decreased by approximately $1.5 million or 10.6% during fiscal year 2014. 
This decrease in noninterest expenses resulted from the net effect of the following: 

 Provision for losses on loan guarantees decreased from $1,062,000 in 2013 to $16,000 in 
2014. The decrease is due to a reduction in loan guarantees paid under the Loan Guarantee 
Program created by Law No. 9 of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico in May 9, 2009. Funds 
for payment of these guarantees were assigned to the Bank under Executive Order 
OE-2010-005, recorded as a reserve for possible losses on loan guarantees and reclassified to 
capital contribution in the statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position for the 
year ended June 30, 2014. 

 Provision for foreclosed assets decreased 10% or $100,000, from $1 million in 2013 to 
$900,000 in 2014. 

 Salaries and employee benefits decreased by 3.6% or $319,000, from approximately 
$8.9 million in 2013 to approximately $8.6 million in 2014. The decrease is mainly due to a 
decrease in total headcount. 

 Occupancy and related expenses (including deprecation) decreased by 6.2% or $47,000, from 
approximately $754,000 in 2013 to approximately $707,000 in 2014. 
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 Advertising expense increased by 2.5% or $6,000, from approximately $257,000 in 2013 to 
approximately $263,000 in 2014. 

 Professional fees increased by 22.6% or $70,000, from approximately $312,000 in 2013 to 
approximately $382,000 in 2014. The increase is mainly due to an increase in other 
professional services during 2014, mainly consultants for the Credit area. 

 All other noninterest expenses decreased by approximately $44,000 as compared to fiscal year 
2014. 

Comparison of 2013 and 2012 Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position 

Condensed financial information on assets, liabilities, and net position is presented below (dollar amounts in 
thousands): 

Increase (decrease)
Net position 2013 2012 Amount Percentage

Current assets $ 143,231   378,109   (234,878)  (62.12)%
Noncurrent assets 1,151,936   1,200,981   (49,045)  (4.08)

Total assets 1,295,167   1,579,090   (283,923)  (17.98)

Current liabilities 416,792   700,779   (283,987)  (40.52)
Noncurrent liabilities 718,293   720,798   (2,505)  (0.35)

Total liabilities 1,135,085   1,421,577   (286,492)  (20.15)

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets (530)  (710)  180   25.35
Restricted for special loan programs 13,259   13,158   101   0.77
Unrestricted 147,353   145,065   2,288   1.58

Net position $ 160,082   157,513   2,569   1.63

 

At June 30, 2013, the Bank’s total assets were $1,295.2 million ($286.4 million from EDBCI) compared to 
$1,579.1 million at June 30, 2012 ($323.1 million from EDBCI). The decrease of $283.9 million represents 18% 
of the 2012 total assets balance. 

Total loan portfolio increased by 38.8% when compared to balances as of June 30, 2012. Loan disbursements 
increased from $145.2 million in 2012 to $191.9 million in 2013, while principal collected on loans increased 
from $113.8 million for fiscal year 2012 to $143.7 million for fiscal year 2013. The related allowance for loan 
losses increased by $4.7 million or 15.3% of the 2012 balance. The net loan portfolio increased by $34.1 million. 

Interest-bearing deposits with other banks, commercial paper, investments, and securities purchased under 
agreements to resell decreased by $319.8 million when compared to balances as of June 30, 2012, mainly due to 
a $213.3 million decrease in time deposits, a decrease of $47.7 million in securities sold under agreement to 
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repurchase, a decrease of $25.6 million in promissory notes and an increase in net loans portfolio of 
$34.1 million. 

At June 30, 2013, the Bank’s total liabilities were $1,135.1 million compared to $1,421.6 million at June 30, 
2012. The decrease of $286.5 million represents 20.2% of the 2012 total liabilities. 

Total time deposits were $330.3 million as of June 30, 2013. Time deposits consist primarily of certificates of 
deposit of public funds from other governmental institutions, which totaled $290 million. Deposits from other 
financial institutions were $40.3 million. Total time deposits decreased by $213.3 million. As of year-end, the 
total promissory notes and other note payable balance was $712.5 million. 

Securities sold under agreement to repurchase decreased by $47.7 million, from $123.9 million in 2012 to 
$76.2 million in 2013. Fluctuations in these securities are due to specific market conditions, which provide the 
Bank with funds and investment opportunities to generate net revenue. 

The Bank’s net position was $160.1 million at June 30, 2013, an increase of $2.6 million or 1.6% when 
compared to June 30, 2012. Additional information about net position composition is presented in note 11 to the 
basic financial statements. 

Comparison of 2013 and 2012 Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Condensed financial information on revenue, expenses, and changes in net position is presented below (in 
thousands): 

Revenue, expenses, and Increase (decrease)
changes in net position 2013 2012 Amount Percentage

Interest income from loans $ 14,268   12,156   2,112   17.37%
Interest income from investments 53,562   55,389   (1,827)  (3.30)

Total interest income 67,830   67,545   285   0.42

Total noninterest income 1,075   1,537   (462)  (30.06)

Total operating revenue 68,905   69,082   (177)  (0.26)

Provision for loan losses 10,788   8,600   2,188   25.44
Total interest expense 44,102   46,443   (2,341)  (5.04)
Total noninterest expenses 13,903   12,414   1,489   11.99

Total operating expenses 68,793   67,457   1,336   1.98

Operating income 112   1,625   (1,513)  (93.11)

Capital contribution 2,458   8,710   (6,252)  (71.78)

Net income and change
in net position $ 2,570   10,335   (7,765)  (75.13)
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For the year ended June 30, 2013, the Bank presents an operating income of $112,000 when compared to the 
operating income of $1.6 million for the year ended June 30, 2012. The decrease in operating income resulted 
from the net effect of the following: 

(f) Interest Income 

Total interest income increased by approximately 0.4% or $285,000, from $67,545 thousand in 2012 
to $67,830 thousand in 2013. This increase in interest income was mainly the result of increased 
average transaction volumes during the fiscal year, with basically no change in average interest rates. 

(g) Noninterest Income 

Noninterest income decreased by approximately $462,000, from $1.5 million in fiscal year 2012 to 
$1.1 million income in 2013. This decrease was mainly due to a decrease in the net realized and 
unrealized gains on investments of $284,000. 

The decrease in the net realized and unrealized gains on investment results from the combined effect 
of a $257,000 decrease in net unrealized gains of investment securities and a $27,000 decrease in net 
realized gains from the disposition of investments. 

(h) Provision for Loan Losses 

Compared to 2012, the provision for loan losses shows an increase of $2.2 million. Impaired loans 
requiring an allowance for losses increased by $7.5 million, from $39.5 million in 2012 to 
$47 million in 2013, and the specific reserve for these increased by $3.3 million, from $12 million to 
$15.3 million. As a percentage of the total loans portfolio, impaired loans represent 28% and 28.1% 
at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Loans charged off during fiscal year 2013 decreased by 
$5.9 million when compared to 2012, from $15.4 million in 2012 to $9.5 million in 2013. As a 
percentage of the total loans portfolio, the allowance for loan losses represents 11.5% at June 30, 
2013 and 2012. 

Loan collections increased from $113.8 million during fiscal year 2012 to $143.7 million for fiscal 
year 2013. 

(i) Interest Expense 

Total interest expense decreased by 5.0% or $2.3 million, from $46.4 million in 2012 to 
$44.1 million in 2013. This decrease in interest expense was the result of decreased average principal 
balances owed. 

(j) Noninterest Expenses 

Noninterest expenses increased by approximately $1.5 million or 12% during fiscal year 2013. This 
decrease in noninterest expenses resulted from the net effect of the following: 

 Provision for losses on loan guarantees in 2013 was $1,062,000, compared to no expense in 
2012. The increase is due to loan guarantees paid under the Loan Guarantee Program created 
by Law No. 9 of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico in May 9, 2009. Funds for payment of 
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these guarantees were assigned to the Bank under Executive Order OE-2010-005, recorded as 
a reserve for possible losses on loan guarantees and reclassified to capital contribution in the 
statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2013. 

 Provision for foreclosed assets increased 33.3% or $250,000, from $750,000 in 2012 to 
$1 million in 2013. 

 Provision for legal claims reflects a reversal of $250,000 during 2012 that caused a decrease in 
the reserve for legal claims account for the year. This resulted in the variance when compared 
to the 2013 balance of this provision, which was $0. The legal reserve reversal relates to one 
specific claim, which created the contingency for that amount in 2010, and which at June 30, 
2012 and 2013 is deemed unwarranted. 

 Salaries and employee benefits increased by 1.9% or $170,000, from approximately 
$8.7 million in 2012 to approximately $8.9 million in 2013. The increase is mainly due to an 
increase in other employee benefits. 

 Occupancy and related expenses (including deprecation) increased by 5.8% or 41,000, from 
approximately $713,000 in 2012 to approximately $754,000 in 2013. 

 Advertising expense decreased by 42.5% or 190,000, from approximately $447,000 in 2012 to 
approximately $257,000 in 2013. The decrease is mainly due to a decrease in related 
initiatives during the second half of the year. 

 Professional fees decreased by 19.1% or $95,000, from approximately $407,000 in 2012 to 
approximately $312,000 in 2013. The decrease is mainly due to a decrease in other 
professional services during 2013, mainly consultants for the Credit area. 

 All other noninterest expenses increased by approximately $1,000 as compared to fiscal year 
2012. 

Analysis of the Overall Financial Position and Results of Operations 

The average balance of funds available from deposits and the related investments reflect a decrease when 
comparing 2014 to 2013, mainly due to the maturity of $261.8 million in promissory notes. When compared with 
fiscal year 2013, time deposits balances from other governmental and financial institutions increased 24.6% or 
$81.4 million in 2014, providing adequate levels of funding to maintain the Bank’s activities. Interest rates 
during fiscal years 2014 and 2013 remained low. 

During the fiscal years 2014 and 2013, $2,270,000 and $3,450,000 were recovered in previously charged-off 
loans, respectively. 
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Discussion of Significant Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt Activity 

During fiscal year 2014, approximately, $283,000 in capital assets was acquired and approximately $43,000 was 
retired. During the same period, $261.8 million in promissory notes matured or amortized, while none were 
issued. As of year-end, the total promissory notes and other note payable balance was $450.1 million. Additional 
information about capital assets and long-term debt activity is presented in notes 5 and 9 to the basic financial 
statements, respectively. 

Contacting the Bank’s Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Bank’s finances for those interested. 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should 
be addressed to the Economic Development Bank for Puerto Rico, P.O. Box 2134, San Juan, PR 00922-2134. 
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EDB EDB
Operating Capital

Assets fund investment Eliminations Total

Current assets:
Cash and due from banks $ 6,155,939   —    —    6,155,939   
Interest-bearing deposits and commercial paper —    11,605,775   (11,605,775)  —    
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 55,727,000   —    —    55,727,000   
Investments 138,982,584   —    —    138,982,584   
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $11,697,394 129,719,826   —    —    129,719,826   
Accrued interest receivable 9,309,800   903   (903)  9,309,800   
Due from other fund 12,489   —    (12,489)  —    

339,907,638   11,606,678   (11,619,167)  339,895,149   

Noncurrent assets:
Investments 506,016,578   46,309,048   —    552,325,626   
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $22,324,149 180,866,685   —    —    180,866,685   
Other assets 8,344,709   —    —    8,344,709   

Capital assets:
Land 2,735,000   —    —    2,735,000   
Building and improvements 11,510,087   —    —    11,510,087   
Furniture and equipment 5,017,805   —    —    5,017,805   
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (10,449,474)  —    —    (10,449,474)  

Total capital assets 8,813,418   —    —    8,813,418   

704,041,390   46,309,048   —    750,350,438   

Total assets 1,043,949,028   57,915,726   (11,619,167)  1,090,245,587   

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Time deposits 423,289,720   —    (11,605,775)  411,683,945   
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 45,690,000   —    —    45,690,000   
Accrued interest payable 7,541,707   —    (903)  7,540,804   
Promissory notes and other note payable 528,924   —    —    528,924   
Due to other fund —    12,489   (12,489)  —    
Other current liabilities 2,854,936   (401)  —    2,854,535   

479,905,287   12,088   (11,619,167)  468,298,208   

Noncurrent liabilities:
Promissory notes and other note payable 449,608,684   —    —    449,608,684   
Other liabilities 6,341,481   —    —    6,341,481   

455,950,165   —    —    455,950,165   

Total liabilities 935,855,452   12,088   (11,619,167)  924,248,373   

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets (109,502)  —    —    (109,502)  
Restricted for special loan programs 18,076,756   —    —    18,076,756   
Unrestricted 90,126,322   57,903,638   —    148,029,960   

Total net position $ 108,093,576   57,903,638   —    165,997,214   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position – Business-Type Activities

Year ended June 30, 2014

EDB EDB
Operating Capital

fund investment Eliminations Total

Operating revenue:
Interest income:

Deposits with other banks and commercial paper $ 114,650   54,366   (54,366)  114,650   
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 1,067,582   —    —    1,067,582   
Investments 30,361,096   4,289,231   —    34,650,327   
Loans 15,292,876   —    —    15,292,876   

Total interest income 46,836,204   4,343,597   (54,366)  51,125,435   

Noninterest income:
Net realized and unrealized (losses) gains on investments (2,238,910)  4,720,074   —    2,481,164   
Other income (loss) 468,570   10,000   (42,015)  436,555   

Total noninterest (loss) income (1,770,340)  4,730,074   (42,015)  2,917,719   

Total operating revenue 45,065,864   9,073,671   (96,381)  54,043,154   

Operating expenses:
Provision for loan losses 10,960,000   —    —    10,960,000   

Interest expense:
Time deposits 3,700,831   —    (54,366)  3,646,465   
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 768,772   —    —    768,772   
Promissory notes and other note payable 21,314,343   3,829,428   —    25,143,771   

Total interest expense 25,783,946   3,829,428   (54,366)  29,559,008   

Noninterest expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits 8,525,594   27,876   —    8,553,470   
Depreciation and amortization 361,885   —    —    361,885   
Occupancy and related expenses 345,240   —    —    345,240   
Professional fees 361,034   62,876   (42,015)  381,895   
Advertising 263,550   —    —    263,550   
Other 2,519,254   33   —    2,519,287   

Total noninterest expenses 12,376,557   90,785   (42,015)  12,425,327   

Total operating expenses 49,120,503   3,920,213   (96,381)  52,944,335   

Operating (loss) income (4,054,639)  5,153,458   —    1,098,819   

Capital contribution 4,816,018   —    —    4,816,018   

Increase in net position 761,379   5,153,458   —    5,914,837   

Total net position, beginning of year 107,332,197   52,750,180   —    160,082,377   
Total net position, end of year $ 108,093,576   57,903,638   —    165,997,214   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)

Statement of Cash Flows – Business-Type Activities

Year ended June 30, 2014

EDB EDB
Operating Capital

fund investment Eliminations Total

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash payments for goods and services $ (2,614,876)  (62,909)  —    (2,677,785)  
Cash payments to employees (8,322,868)  (37,253)  —    (8,360,121)  
Cash received from interest and principal on loans 143,960,956   —    —    143,960,956   
Other (receipts) payments (366,257)  34,214   —    (332,043)  
Cash disbursed for loaned amounts (177,479,304)  —    —    (177,479,304)  

Net cash used in operating activities (44,822,349)  (65,948)  —    (44,888,297)  

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in:

Time deposits 78,791,983   —    2,574,268   81,366,251   
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (30,510,000)  —    —    (30,510,000)  

Repayment of promissory notes (28,632,932)  (233,200,000)  —    (261,832,932)  
Interest paid on time deposits, securities sold under

agreements to repurchase, and promissory notes (24,275,942)  (4,274,709)  54,290   (28,496,361)  

Net cash (used in) provided by noncapital
financing activities (4,626,891)  (237,474,709)  2,628,558   (239,473,042)  

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Capital contribution 4,816,018   —    —    4,816,018   
Acquisition of capital assets (283,282)  —    —    (283,282)  
Principal payment on capital debt (498,985)  —    —    (498,985)  
Interest paid on capital debt (565,314)  —    —    (565,314)  

Net cash provided by capital and related
financing activities 3,468,437   —    —    3,468,437   

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of investments (36,725,000)  (9,264,286)  —    (45,989,286)  
Proceeds from sales, principal repayments and maturities

of investments 106,886,998   239,388,406   —    346,275,404   
Net decrease (increase) in:

Interest-bearing deposits with other banks —    2,574,268   (2,574,268)  —    
Securities purchased under agreements to resell (55,727,000)  —    —    (55,727,000)  

Interest collected on investments, notes receivable,
interest-bearing deposits with other banks, and
commercial paper 31,356,465   4,842,269   (54,290)  36,144,444   

Proceeds from sales of foreclosed assets 779,097   —    —    779,097   

Net cash provided by investing activities 46,570,560   237,540,657   (2,628,558)  281,482,659   

Net increase in cash and due from banks 589,757   —    —    589,757   

Cash and due from banks, beginning of year 5,566,182   —    —    5,566,182   
Cash and due from banks, end of year $ 6,155,939   —    —    6,155,939   
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)

Statement of Cash Flows – Business-Type Activities

Year ended June 30, 2014

EDB EDB
Operating Capital

fund investment Eliminations Total

Reconciliation of operating (loss) income to net cash used in
operating activities:

Operating (loss) income $ (4,054,639)  5,153,458   —    1,098,819   
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) income to net cash

used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 361,885   —    —    361,885   
Net realized and unrealized loss (gain) on investments 2,238,910   (4,672,074)  —    (2,433,164)  
Provision for loan losses 10,960,000   —    —    10,960,000   
Provision for losses on foreclosed assets 900,000   —    —    900,000   
Provision for losses on loan guarantees 16,250   —    —    16,250   
Loss on sale of foreclosed assets 172,693   —    —    172,693   
Interest income from investments (31,543,328)  (4,343,597)  54,366   (35,832,559)  
Decrease in accrued interest receivable from loans (340,919)  —    —    (340,919)  
Interest expense 25,783,946   3,829,428   (54,366)  29,559,008   
Increase in other assets (981,315)  (23,787)  —    (1,005,102)  
Increase in loans receivable (48,470,304)  —    —    (48,470,304)  
Decrease (increase) in other liabilities 134,472   (9,376)  —    125,096   

Net cash used in operating activities $ (44,822,349)  (65,948)  —    (44,888,297)  

Supplemental cash flow information and noncash transactions:
(Decrease) increase in fair value of investments $ (2,043,999)  1,672,074   —    (371,925)  
Transfer from loans to foreclosed real estate 696,959   —    —    696,959   
Retirement of fully depreciated capital assets 42,705   —    —    42,705   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

15



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)

Statement of Net Position – Business-Type Activities

June 30, 2013

EDB EDB
Operating Capital

Assets fund investment Eliminations Total

Current assets:
Cash and due from banks $ 5,566,182   —    —    5,566,182   
Interest-bearing deposits and commercial paper —    14,180,043   (14,180,043)  —    
Investments 3,722,532   —    —    3,722,532   
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $14,602,633 124,661,901   —    —    124,661,901   
Accrued interest receivable 8,782,017   499,575   (827)  9,280,765   
Due from other fund 36,275   —    (36,275)  —    

142,768,907   14,679,618   (14,217,145)  143,231,380   

Noncurrent assets:
Investments 713,677,538   271,761,094   —    985,438,632   
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $21,131,540 149,111,265   —    —    149,111,265   
Other assets 8,494,440   —    —    8,494,440   

Capital assets:
Land 2,735,000   —    —    2,735,000   
Building and improvements 11,340,844   —    —    11,340,844   
Furniture and equipment 4,946,471   —    —    4,946,471   
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (10,130,294)  —    —    (10,130,294)  

Total capital assets 8,892,021   —    —    8,892,021   

880,175,264   271,761,094   —    1,151,936,358   

Total assets 1,022,944,171   286,440,712   (14,217,145)  1,295,167,738   

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Time deposits 344,497,737   —    (14,180,043)  330,317,694   
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 76,200,000   —    —    76,200,000   
Accrued interest payable 6,599,017   445,282   (827)  7,043,472   
Promissory notes and other note payable 498,985   —    —    498,985   
Due to other fund —    36,275   (36,275)  —    
Other current liabilities 2,727,871   3,895   —    2,731,766   

430,523,610   485,452   (14,217,145)  416,791,917   

Noncurrent liabilities:
Promissory notes and other note payable 478,770,540   233,200,000   —    711,970,540   
Other liabilities 6,317,824   5,080   —    6,322,904   

485,088,364   233,205,080   —    718,293,444   

Total liabilities 915,611,974   233,690,532   (14,217,145)  1,135,085,361   

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets (529,884)  —    —    (529,884)  
Restricted for special loan programs 13,259,414   —    —    13,259,414   
Unrestricted 94,602,667   52,750,180   —    147,352,847   

Total net position $ 107,332,197   52,750,180   —    160,082,377   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position – Business-Type Activities

Year ended June 30, 2013

EDB EDB
Operating Capital

fund investment Eliminations Total

Operating revenue:
Interest income:

Deposits with other banks and commercial paper $ 981,522   44,977   (44,977)  981,522   
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 1,817,891   —    —    1,817,891   
Investments 31,455,334   19,307,033   —    50,762,367   
Loans 14,268,058   —    —    14,268,058   

Total interest income 48,522,805   19,352,010   (44,977)  67,829,838   

Noninterest income:
Net realized and unrealized (losses) gains on investments (2,818,902)  3,181,669   —    362,767   
Other income 755,793   —    (43,623)  712,170   

Total noninterest (loss) income (2,063,109)  3,181,669   (43,623)  1,074,937   

Total operating revenue 46,459,696   22,533,679   (88,600)  68,904,775   

Operating expenses:
Provision for loan losses 10,788,145   —    —    10,788,145   

Interest expense:
Time deposits 3,606,511   —    (44,977)  3,561,534   
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 1,649,528   —    —    1,649,528   
Promissory notes and other note payable 21,636,967   17,253,971   —    38,890,938   

Total interest expense 26,893,006   17,253,971   (44,977)  44,102,000   

Noninterest expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits 8,776,633   95,621   —    8,872,254   
Depreciation and amortization 392,795   —    —    392,795   
Occupancy and related expenses 361,115   —    —    361,115   
Professional fees 311,576   43,623   (43,623)  311,576   
Advertising 257,023   151   —    257,174   
Other 3,707,917   510   —    3,708,427   

Total noninterest expenses 13,807,059   139,905   (43,623)  13,903,341   

Total operating expenses 51,488,210   17,393,876   (88,600)  68,793,486   

Operating (loss) income (5,028,514)  5,139,803   —    111,289   

Capital contribution 2,457,725   —    —    2,457,725   

(Decrease) increase in net position (2,570,789)  5,139,803   —    2,569,014   

Total net position, beginning of year 109,902,986   47,610,377   —    157,513,363   
Total net position, end of year $ 107,332,197   52,750,180   —    160,082,377   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)

Statement of Cash Flows – Business-Type Activities

Year ended June 30, 2013

EDB EDB
Operating Capital

fund investment Eliminations Total

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash payments for goods and services $ (2,909,260)  (44,284)  —    (2,953,544)  
Cash payments to employees (8,944,840)  (101,593)  —    (9,046,433)  
Cash received from interest and principal on loans 155,995,662   —    —    155,995,662   
Other (receipts) payments (915,411)  88,683   —    (826,728)  
Cash disbursed for loaned amounts (191,934,875)  —    —    (191,934,875)  

Net cash used in operating activities (48,708,724)  (57,194)  —    (48,765,918)  

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in:

Time deposits (211,158,117)  —    (2,138,152)  (213,296,269)  
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (47,725,000)  —    —    (47,725,000)  

Issuance of promissory notes 150,003,356   —    —    150,003,356   
Repayment of promissory notes (131,296,574)  (41,800,000)  —    (173,096,574)  
Interest paid on time deposits, securities sold under

agreements to repurchase, and promissory notes (26,085,129)  (17,325,960)  44,735   (43,366,354)  

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (266,261,464)  (59,125,960)  (2,093,417)  (327,480,841)  

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Capital contribution 2,457,725   —    —    2,457,725   
Acquisition of capital assets (101,975)  —    —    (101,975)  
Principal payment on capital debt (470,741)  —    —    (470,741)  
Interest paid on capital debt (593,559)  —    —    (593,559)  

Net cash provided by capital and related
financing activities 1,291,450   —    —    1,291,450   

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of investments (208,246,527)  —    —    (208,246,527)  
Principal repayments and maturities of investments 302,707,579   41,890,001   —    344,597,580   
Net decrease (increase) in:

Interest-bearing deposits with other banks 121,500,000   (2,138,152)  2,138,152   121,500,000   
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 62,251,000   —    —    62,251,000   

Interest collected on investments, notes receivable,
interest-bearing deposits with other banks, and
commercial paper 34,531,629   19,431,305   (44,735)  53,918,199   

Proceeds from sales of foreclosed assets 1,021,250   —    —    1,021,250   

Net cash provided by investing activities 313,764,931   59,183,154   2,093,417   375,041,502   

Net increase in cash and due from banks 86,193   —    —    86,193   

Cash and due from banks, beginning of year 5,479,989   —    —    5,479,989   
Cash and due from banks, end of year $ 5,566,182   —    —    5,566,182   
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico)

Statement of Cash Flows – Business-Type Activities

Year ended June 30, 2013

EDB EDB
Operating Capital

fund investment Eliminations Total

Reconciliation of operating (loss) income to net cash used in
operating activities:

Operating (loss) income $ (5,028,514)  5,139,803   —    111,289   
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) income to net cash

used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 392,795   —    —    392,795   
Net realized and unrealized loss (gain) on investments 2,818,902   (3,129,919)  —    (311,017)  
Provision for loan losses 10,788,145   —    —    10,788,145   
Provision for losses on foreclosed assets 1,000,000   —    —    1,000,000   
Provision for losses on loan guarantees 1,061,855   —    —    1,061,855   
Gain on sale of foreclosed assets (12,750)  —    —    (12,750)  
Interest income from investments (34,254,747)  (19,352,011)  44,977   (53,561,781)  
Decrease in accrued interest receivable from loans (279,578)  —    —    (279,578)  
Interest expense 26,893,006   17,253,971   (44,977)  44,102,000   
(Increase) decrease in other assets (117,835)  36,933   —    (80,902)  
Increase in loans receivable (49,927,693)  —    —    (49,927,693)  
(Increase) decrease in other liabilities (2,042,310)  (5,971)  —    (2,048,281)  

Net cash used in operating activities $ (48,708,724)  (57,194)  —    (48,765,918)  

Supplemental cash flow information and noncash transactions:
(Decrease) increase in fair value of investments $ (2,607,444)  3,129,919   —    522,475   
Transfer from loans to foreclosed real estate 3,977,167   —    —    3,977,167   
Retirement of fully depreciated capital assets 29,452   —    —    29,452   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Economic Development Bank for Puerto Rico (the Bank) was created by the Puerto Rico Development 
Bank Act No. 22 of July 24, 1985, as amended, and constitutes a public corporation of the Commonwealth 
of Puerto Rico (the Commonwealth). The Bank is a component unit included in the Commonwealth’s 
financial reporting entity and is a separate legal entity. The Bank promotes the development of the private 
sector of the economy of Puerto Rico. This is accomplished by making direct loans, loan guarantees, loan 
participations, and/or direct investments available to any person or business organization devoted to 
manufacturing, agriculture, trade, tourism, or other service enterprises, whose economic activity may have 
the effect of substituting imports, without this being understood as a limitation. 

The Bank’s operation consists principally in granting commercial loans and capital investments to small 
businesses, receiving deposits from other governmental or commercial financial institutions, issuing notes 
and other debts, and investing in securities and other financial instruments, similar to a private commercial 
bank. All revenue, such as interest, gains, dividends, and fees related to these activities, are presented as 
operating income. All expenses related to these revenue activities, such as interest expense, provision for 
losses, and administrative expenses, are considered operating expenses. For financial statements 
presentation, operating revenue is segregated between interest income and noninterest income, and 
operating expenses between interest expense, provision for losses, and other noninterest expenses. 

The Bank is not required to pay any taxes on any assets acquired or to be acquired for its operations or 
activities, or on the revenue received from any of its operations or activities. 

In 2006, the Bank’s board of directors created a component unit named Economic Development Bank 
Capital Investment (EDBCI). EDBCI is a blended component unit of the Bank, which is presented as a 
business-type activity. The balances and transactions of EDBCI have been blended with the Bank in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) because, though legally separated, 
it was created and can be dissolved through resolutions of the Bank’s board of directors. The board of 
directors of EDBCI is the same as that of the Bank. EDBCI operation consists only of supporting the 
Bank’s mission in promoting the development of the private sector of the economy of Puerto Rico, 
investing in equity and other forms of capital of start-up, early, or later stage local enterprises or venture 
capital funds. During fiscal year 2007, the Bank transferred its capital investment portfolio, amounting to 
$27,445,966, as initial capital to EDBCI. An additional $30 million was approved for new capital 
investments as deemed necessary in EDBCI investment activity. Also, EDBCI was authorized to invest in 
corporate paper as part of a new notes payable program like the one described in note 9. 
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The accounting policies followed by the Bank are in accordance with GAAP, as applicable to 
governmental entities. The business-type activities of the Bank are accounted for as an enterprise fund. 
Accordingly, the Bank follows the accrual basis of accounting and the economic resources measurement 
focus. Revenue is recognized when earned, regardless of when received, and expenses are recognized 
when incurred, regardless of when paid. The following is a description of the most significant accounting 
policies: 

(a) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
Significant estimates made by management include the allowance for loan losses, losses on 
foreclosed assets, losses on loan guarantees, and venture capital investments; the useful lives of fixed 
assets; the valuation of fixed assets and investments; and accruals for legal claims and other 
contingencies. The current economic environment has increased the degree of uncertainty inherent in 
those estimates and assumptions. 

(b) Basis of Presentation 

The basic financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. 

(c) Securities Purchased under Agreements to Resell 

The Bank enters into purchases of securities under agreements to resell, as authorized by Act number 
22 of July 24, 1985, Article 3. The amounts advanced under these agreements are reflected as an 
asset in the accompanying statements of net position. The securities underlying these agreements, 
mainly interest-bearing deposits with other banks and government securities, are held under 
safekeeping by a financial institution independent of the transaction. 

(d) Investments 

The Bank follows GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain 
Investments and for External Investment Pools. This Statement establishes accounting and financial 
reporting standards for all investments held by governmental external investment pools. For most 
other governmental entities, it requires that most investments be reported at fair value in the 
statements of net position. 

The governing board authorizes the Bank to invest in the following: 

 U.S. government and agencies obligations 

 Obligations of the Commonwealth, its agencies, municipalities, public corporations, and 
instrumentalities 

 Certificates and time deposits 
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 Commercial paper 

 Bankers’ acceptance 

 Federal funds 

 Securities purchased under agreements to resell 

 Mortgage- and asset-backed securities 

 Corporate notes 

 External investment pools 

The Bank’s investment policies also establish limitations and other guidelines on amounts to be 
invested in the aforementioned investment categories. Such policies provide the requirements in the 
institutions with which investment transactions can be entered into. In addition to the Assets, 
Liabilities, and Investments Committee (ALCO), the Board of Directors of the Bank may approve, as 
necessary, other transactions that the Bank may enter into. 

Investments in debt securities are presented at fair value, including the effect of applicable put 
options as described in note 9. Money market investments and participating interest-earning 
investment contracts with a remaining maturity at time of purchase of one year or less are presented 
at amortized cost. Changes in the fair value of investments are presented in net realized and 
unrealized gains (losses) on investments in the statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in net 
position. Fair value is determined based on quoted market prices. 

Investments also include common and preferred stocks of various local enterprises that do not have 
readily determinable fair value and investment positions in external investment pools. The 
investments in common and preferred stocks are temporary and the Bank generally does not have the 
ability to exercise significant influence over the investees’ operating and financial policies, and 
therefore, such investments are carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value based on 
management’s evaluation of the financial condition of each investee. Because of uncertainties 
inherent in the estimation process, management’s evaluation of the financial condition of the 
investees, and the related assessment of net realizable value may change in the near term. 

Investment positions in external investment pools are reported at the net asset value of the shares 
held by the Bank. Such net asset value represents the fair value per share of the pools’ underlying net 
assets. The financial statements of these pools include securities whose fair values have been 
estimated by the pools’ managers in the absence of readily ascertainable market values. The Bank’s 
external investment pools that are not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission are 
supervised by the Commissioner of Financial Institutions, which is the governmental agency that 
regulates venture capital funds and the banking industry in Puerto Rico. 
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(e) Loans 

Loans are presented at the unpaid principal balance reduced by the allowance for loan losses, and 
any deferred fees or costs on originated loans. In accordance with the Bank’s charge-off policy 
unsecured loans are charged off against the allowance for loans losses within 60 days after they have 
payments due over 120 days. For collateralized loans, charge-offs are recognized for the amount of 
collateral deficiency within 60 days after they have payments due over 180 days. Although one of 
the factors evaluated by management in making this assessment is the number of days past due, the 
policy also allows the Bank to charge-off loans when special circumstances arise and upon the 
approval of the corresponding level of authority. 

Recoveries of loans previously charged off are credited to the allowance for loan losses. 

The accrual of interest on loans ceases when loans become past due 90 days or more and/or on those 
loans undergoing judicial or bankruptcy proceedings. Once a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, all 
accrued but uncollected interest is reversed from interest income. Interest on all nonaccrual loans is 
thereafter included in earnings only to the extent actually collected. Loans designated as nonaccruing 
are not returned to an accrual status until interest is received on a current basis and those factors 
indicative of doubtful collection cease to exist. 

Collections received for nonaccrual loans are applied, for financial statement purposes, to principal 
owed. The change in payment application for nonaccrual loans is intended to reduce the recorded 
exposure to losses as well as the related required levels of the allowance for losses. Delinquency 
history and collection efforts are monitored in accordance with the full accrual amortization schedule 
of the loan. 

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level believed adequate by management to absorb 
potential losses in the loan portfolio. Management’s determination of the adequacy of the allowance 
is based on an evaluation of the portfolio, past loan loss experience, economic conditions, volume 
growth, composition of the loan portfolio, and other relevant factors. Allowances for impaired loans 
are generally determined based on collateral values or the present value of estimated cash flows. 
Changes in the allowance relating to impaired loans are charged or credited to the provision for loan 
losses. Because of uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, management’s estimate of credit 
losses inherent in the loan portfolio, and the related allowance may change in the near term. 

(f) Classification of Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses 

The current portion of loans includes the active principal of loans with maturities of one year or less 
and past due over three months and/or those loans undergoing judicial or bankruptcy proceedings. 
Also, these include the estimated current portion of loans with maturity over one year. The resulting 
difference was reported as the noncurrent portion. 

The allowance for loan losses was allocated between current and noncurrent proportionally based on 
the loan classification. 
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(g) Loan Guarantee Program 

Guarantee fees on the loan guarantee program are recognized as income when the fees are collected. 
Such fees are estimated not to exceed related guarantee expenses. The accrual for losses on loan 
guarantees is based on management’s evaluation of the potential loss on each guarantee, net of 
amounts recoverable from collateral and the share of loss of the participating banks, and is included 
in other liabilities. Because of uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, management’s 
estimate of the provision for losses on loan guarantees, and the related accrual for losses on loan 
guarantees may change in the near term. 

(h) Loan Origination Costs and Commitment Fees 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, the 
Bank records fees related to loan origination and commitment as revenue in the period received. 
Direct loan origination costs are recognized as expense in the period incurred. 

(i) Real Estate Owned 

Real estate owned acquired in satisfaction of loans is included in other assets and is held for sale. 
Properties acquired through foreclosure are transferred to real estate owned and recognized at the 
lower of fair value minus estimated costs to sell or the loan’s carrying value, establishing a new cost 
basis. Subsequent declines in the value of real estate owned are provided for when it is probable the 
cost will not be recovered and that a loss will be incurred. An allowance for losses on real estate 
owned is maintained for subsequent valuation adjustments on a specific property basis. 

(j) Capital Assets 

Capital assets are defined by the Bank as assets with an individual initial cost of over $500 and 
expected useful lives of over one year. Capital assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation 
and amortization. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 
of the depreciable assets, which have been determined to be 3 years for computer software, 5 years 
for all furniture and equipment, and 40 years for building and improvements. Expenditures for major 
improvements that extend the useful life of the asset are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs are 
charged to expense. 

(k) Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase 

The Bank enters into sales of securities under agreements to repurchase, as authorized by Act 
number 22 of July 24, 1985, Article 3. These agreements are presented as a liability in the 
accompanying statements of net position. The securities underlying these agreements are usually 
held by the broker or its agent, with whom the agreement is transacted. 

(l) Accounting for Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences, such as unpaid vacation and sick leave pay, are accrued when incurred using 
the pay or salary rates in effect at the statement of net position date. An additional amount is accrued 
for certain salary related benefits associated with the payment of compensated absences. Such 
amounts are included in other liabilities and the accompanying financial statements. 
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(m) Statements of Cash Flows 

The accompanying statements of cash flows are presented in accordance with the provisions of 
GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Nonexpendable Trust Funds and 
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. For purposes of reporting cash flows, 
cash includes cash on hand, amounts due from banks, and items in process of collection. 

(n) Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the Bank adopted the following new accounting 
standards issued by the GASB: 

(i) GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This Statement 
establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of 
resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as 
assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain 
items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities, or vice versa. This Statement also 
provides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the financial statement 
elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, such as changes in 
the determination of the major fund calculations and limiting the use of the term deferred in 
financial statement presentations. The implementation of GASB Statement No. 65 had no 
impact in the accompanying financial statements. 

(ii) GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections 2012. The objective of this Statement is to 
improve accounting and financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity by 
resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two pronouncements, 
Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and 
No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre – 
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. This Statement also amends 
Statement 62 by modifying the specific guidance on accounting for (1) operating lease 
payments that vary from a straight-line basis, (2) the difference between the initial investment 
(purchase price) and the principal amount of a purchased loan or group of loans, and 
(3) servicing fees related to mortgage loans that are sold when the stated service fee rate differs 
significantly from a current (normal) servicing fee rate. These changes clarify how to apply 
Statement No. 13, Accounting for Operating Leases with Scheduled Rent Increases, and result 
in guidance that is consistent with the requirements in Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of 
Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues, 
respectively. The implementation of GASB Statement No. 66 had no impact in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

(iii) GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans – an amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 25. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by 
state and local governmental pension plans. This Statement replaces the requirements of 
Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note 
Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to 
pension plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements (hereafter jointly 
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referred to as trusts) that meet certain criteria. The implementation of GASB Statement No. 67 
had no impact in the accompanying financial statements. 

(iv) GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial 
Guarantees. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting 
by state and local governments that extend and receive nonexchange financial guarantees. This 
Statement requires a governmental entity guarantor that offers a nonexchange financial 
guarantee to another organization or government to recognize a liability on its financial 
statements when it is more likely than not that the guarantor will be required to make a 
payment to the obligation holders under the agreement. The implementation of 
GASB Statement No 70 had no impact in the accompanying financial statements. 

(o) Future Adoption of Accounting Pronouncements 

The GASB has issued the following accounting standards that have effective dates after June 30, 
2014, and are expected to impact the Bank: 

(i) GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an amendment 
of GASB Statement No. 27. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting 
and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also improves 
information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for 
pensions that is provided by other entities. This Statement replaces the requirements of 
Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, as 
well as the requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pensions 
that are provided through pension plans administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements 
(hereafter jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certain criteria. The provisions of this 
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2014. The 
effects of adopting this standards have not been determined but are expected to result in the 
recognition of a significant unfunded pension obligation. 

(ii) GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. The objective of this 
Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition provisions of Statement 
No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts 
associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or 
nonemployer contributing entity to a defined-benefit pension plan after the measurement date 
of the government’s beginning net pension liability. This Statement amends paragraph 137 of 
Statement No. 68 to require that, at transition, a government recognize a beginning deferred 
outflow of resources for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement 
date of the beginning net pension liability. The provisions of this Statement are effective for 
financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2014. 
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(2) Cash and Due from Banks, Interest-Bearing Deposits with Other Banks and Commercial Paper, and 
Securities Purchased under Agreements to Resell 

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the carrying amount and the corresponding depository bank balances of 
cash and due from banks and interest-bearing deposits with other banks were as follows: 

2014
Carrying Depository
amount bank balance

Cash and due from banks $ 6,155,939   8,288,724   

 

2013
Carrying Depository
amount bank balance

Cash and due from banks $ 5,566,182   7,023,956   

 

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the total depository bank balance consisted of $4,061,657 and $4,794,649, 
respectively, which was insured or collateralized with securities held by the Department of the Treasury of 
the Commonwealth and $4,227,067 and $2,229,307, respectively, deposited with the Government 
Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB), another component unit of the Commonwealth. Deposits with 
GDB are uninsured and uncollateralized. 

The Bank’s investment policies allow management to purchase commercial paper. The following table 
summarizes certain information about these purchases for the year ended June 30, 2014 and 2013: 

2014 2013

Carrying amount at June 30 $ —    —    
Average amount outstanding during the year 1,444,238   4,837,000   
Maximum amount outstanding at  any month-end —    —    
Weighted average interest rate for the year 0.41% 0.30%
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The Bank’s investment policies, as authorized by Act number 22 of July 24, 1985, Article 3, allow 
management to purchase securities under agreements to resell. The following table summarizes certain 
information about these agreements: 

2014 2013

Carrying amount at June 30 $ 55,727,000   —    
Average amount outstanding during the year 102,225,000   191,751,000   
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end 166,947,000   302,225,000   
Weighted average interest rate for the year 1.17% 0.91%
Weighted average interest rate at year-end 1.25 —
Weighted average maturity (years) 0.06 —

 

The Bank’s investment policies establish the minimum amount of acceptable collateral. The market prices 
of the collateral are revised monthly and the margin amount adjusted accordingly. The aggregate market 
value of the securities underlying the agreements outstanding at June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $82,015,000 
and $0, respectively. 

(3) Investments 

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Bank had the following investments: 

June 30, 2014
Weighted
average
maturity

Investment type Fair value (years)

Federal Home Loan Bank – MBS $ 676,865   1.0   
Federal National Mortgage Association – MBS – notes

payable program 150,000,000   See below
Municipal bonds 148,481,732   0.5   
Municipal bonds – notes payable program 267,331,170   See below
Collateralized mortgage obligations (residential) 53,575,714   2.3   
Collateralized mortgage obligations – notes payable

program (residential) 23,933,681   See below
External investment pools 36,186,412   N/A
Equity investments 11,122,636   N/A

Total fair value $ 691,308,210   
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June 30, 2013
Weighted
average
maturity

Investment type Fair value (years)

Federal Home Loan Bank – MBS $ 1,116,082   0.6   
Federal National Mortgage Association – MBS – notes

payable program 150,000,000   See below
Municipal bonds 150,134,600   1.6   
Municipal bonds – notes payable program 267,830,978   See below
Corporate paper – notes payable program 233,200,000   See below
Collateralized mortgage obligations (residential) 96,250,284   2.7   
Collateralized mortgage obligations – notes payable

program (residential) 52,068,126   See below
External investment pools 36,738,457   N/A
Equity investments 1,822,637   N/A

Total fair value $ 989,161,164   
 

Interest rate risk – In accordance with its investment policy, the Bank manages its exposure to declines in 
fair values by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio generally to less than 
three years. 

Those investments related to the notes payable programs involve matched transactions that generate a fixed 
spread of income to the Bank. These were directly approved by the Bank’s board of directors and are not 
subject to the maximum maturity policy. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the investments, which serve as 
collateral to the notes payable program have a weighted average maturity of 11.2 and 9.9 years, 
respectively. 

In addition, investments in external investment pools and equity securities are not subject to the maximum 
maturity policy since they do not carry a maturity date. These instruments are not sold on secondary 
markets and are not priced in any stock exchange, and as such, its fair value depends on the performance of 
the involved enterprises. The inherent risk in these investments is managed through credit analysis, 
periodic reviews of results of operations, and meetings with subject companies and investment pools 
managers. 

Credit risk – The Bank’s investment policy limits long-term investment in corporate debt to the top three 
ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations, and short-term investments in 
corporate debt to the top two ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. 

As of June 30, 2014, the Bank’s investments in collateralized mortgage obligations were rated AAA or 
AA+ by Standard & Poor’s, Aaa, A3, Baa1, or Caa3 by Moody’s Investor Service and AAA or D by Fitch 
Ratings; the Bank’s investment in Federal National Mortgage Association and Federal Home Loan Bank 
were rated AA+ by Standard & Poor’s, Aaa by Moody’s Investor Service and AAA by Fitch Ratings; and 
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the Bank’s investment in municipal bonds were rated AAA, AA-, A+, BB+, or BB by Standard & Poor’s 
and Aaa, Aa1, Aa3, A1, A2, Baa3, Ba2, B1, B2, or B3 by Moody’s Investor Service. 

As of June 30, 2013, the Bank’s investments in corporate paper were rated B+ by Standard & Poor’s and 
B1 by Moody’s Investor Service; the Bank’s investments in collateralized mortgage obligations were rated 
AAA, AA+, A+, BBB+, BB+, or D by Standard & Poor’s and AAA, BBB, or D by Fitch Ratings; the 
Bank’s investment in Federal National Mortgage Association, and Federal Home Loan Bank were rated 
AA+ by Standard & Poor’s, Aaa by Moody’s Investor Service and AAA by Fitch Ratings; and the Bank’s 
investment in municipal bonds were rated AAA, AA-, or BBB- by Standard & Poor’s and Aaa, Aa1, Aa3, 
A1, A2, or Baa3 by Moody’s Investor Service. 

Credit Risk
Rating (1)

Securities type AAA to BBB BB to D NR Total

Federal Home Loan Bank – MBS $ 676,865  —  —  676,865  
Federal National Mortgage

Association – MBS – notes
payable program 150,000,000  —  —  150,000,000  

Municipal bonds —  148,481,732  —  148,481,732  
Municipal bonds – notes payable 267,331,170  —  —  267,331,170  

program
Collateralized mortgage obligations

(residential) 52,279,524  1,296,190  —  53,575,714  
Collateralized mortgage obligations -

notes payable program (residential) 23,933,681  —  —  23,933,681  
External investment pools —  —  36,186,412  36,186,412  
Equity investments —  —  11,122,636  11,122,636  

$ 494,221,240  149,777,922  47,309,048  691,308,210  
(1) Rating obtained from Standard & Poor’s or equivalent rating by Moody’s Investor Service or

Fitch Ratings.
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The Bank, through EDBCI, also invests in venture capital through external investment pools and through 
direct investment in equity securities. The Bank’s investments in external investment pools and equity 
securities are not rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The related credit risk is 
measured through credit analysis, periodic reviews of results of operations, and meetings with subject 
companies’ management. In addition, a reserve for possible losses in venture capital investments is 
recorded as a measure of providing a fair value in the financial statements. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
the venture capital balances comprised the following: 

2014 2013

External investment pools $ 36,186,412   36,738,457   
Equity investments 15,754,000   6,204,000   

51,940,412   42,942,457   

Allowance for losses in venture capital investments (4,631,364)  (4,381,363)  
Fair value of venture capital investments $ 47,309,048   38,561,094   

 

The investment strategy of the external investment pools is to seek companies in or outside Puerto Rico 
that require capital growth or seed capital; although the investment recipients must have operations in 
Puerto Rico. The current investments in external equity investment pools are in different investment stages 
of their life cycle. Some of the funds continue evaluating new investment alternatives and others are in its 
sell-off stage. 

In accordance with the partnership agreements for each of the external investment pools, the Bank’s 
investments can only be redeemed upon distribution from funds managers; usually in the form of a sale of 
its holdings or dividends distributed. The assets held by the funds in sell-off stage should be liquidated 
within the next three years; whereas the assets held by investment stage funds will take from seven to 
ten years for liquidation, as expected per its respective partnership agreements. As of June 30, 2014, the 
Bank does not intend to sell or redeem investments in any external investment pool for an amount different 
to that presented in the financial statements. 

Custodial credit risk – Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty to the transaction, the Bank may not be able to recover the value of the investment or 
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, securities 
investments were registered in the name of the Bank and were held in the possession of the Bank’s 
custodian institution. 
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The Bank was exposed to the following custodial credit risk for investments held at June 30, 2014: 

2014 2013

Uninsured and registered, with securities held by the
counterparty’s trust department or agent in the
Bank’s name $ 643,999,162   950,600,070   

Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the Bank 47,309,048   38,561,094   
Total $ 691,308,210   989,161,164   

 

Concentration of credit risk – The Bank places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer as a 
percentage of the investment portfolio. As of June 30, 2014, more than 5% of the Bank’s investments are 
in Municipal Bonds (60.2%) and Federal National Mortgage Association CMO’s (23.2%). As of June 30, 
2013, more than 5% of the Bank’s investments are in Municipal Bonds (42.3%), Popular Inc. (the Issuer) 
corporate notes (23.6%), and Federal National Mortgage Association CMO’s (16.6%). 

Proceeds from sales, principal payments, and maturities of investments, including equity investments and 
gross realized gains or losses, for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows: 

2014 2013

Proceeds from sales $ 15,175,087   —    
Proceeds from principal payments and maturities 331,100,317   344,597,580   
Gross gains 3,273,354   —    

 

(4) Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses 

The balance of current and noncurrent loans consists of loans originated by the Bank and amounts paid 
under the loan guarantee program. During the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Bank has made no 
payments under the loan guarantee program. 

Loans distribution among industry sectors as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows: 

2014 2013

Agricultural $ 32,079,461   33,621,468   
Commercial 84,225,635   75,635,293   
Services 157,473,817   137,827,358   
Manufacturing 40,587,740   30,095,605   
Tourism 30,241,401   32,327,615   

Total loans 344,608,054   309,507,339   

Allowance for loan losses (34,021,543)  (35,734,173)  
$ 310,586,511   273,773,166   
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The Bank has defined impaired loans as all loans with interest and/or principal past due 90 days or more 
and other loans for which, based on current information, it is probable that the debtor will be unable to pay 
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. The Bank generally measures impairment based 
upon the present value of a loan’s expected future cash flows, except where foreclosure or liquidation is 
probable or when the primary source of repayment is provided by collateral. In these circumstances, 
impairment is measured based upon the fair value of the collateral less estimated selling and disposal costs. 
The present value of a loan’s expected future cash flows is calculated using the loan’s effective interest rate 
based on the original contractual terms. 

Cash payments received on impaired loans are recorded in accordance with the contractual terms of the 
loan. The principal portion of the payments is used to reduce the principal balance of the loan; the interest 
portion is recognized as interest income. When management believes that collectibility of principal is 
doubtful, the interest portion may be applied to principal. 

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, loan receivables delinquency by industry sector was a follows: 

2014
Balance

0–29 Days 30–59 Days 60–89 Days 90+ Days outstanding

Agricultural $ 18,418,065  763,077  937,719  11,960,600  32,079,461  
Commercial 64,335,515  4,877,180  384,144  14,628,796  84,225,635  
Services 138,274,198  4,364,710  1,230,549  13,604,360  157,473,817  
Manufacturing 32,796,620  411,772  16,604  7,362,744  40,587,740  
Tourism 26,367,347  —  —  3,874,054  30,241,401  

$ 280,191,745  10,416,739  2,569,016  51,430,554  344,608,054  

 

2013
Balance

0–29 Days 30–59 Days 60–89 Days 90+ Days outstanding

Agricultural $ 21,135,405  708,651  327,739  11,449,673  33,621,468  
Commercial 63,992,749  2,177,518  466,988  8,998,038  75,635,293  
Services 121,938,074  4,996,085  2,761,624  8,131,575  137,827,358  
Manufacturing 25,915,608  192,170  82,770  3,905,057  30,095,605  
Tourism 28,142,300  245,515  —  3,939,800  32,327,615  

$ 261,124,136  8,319,939  3,639,121  36,424,143  309,507,339  
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The following is a summary of information on loans considered to be impaired in accordance with ASC 
subtopic 310-35-35 Receivables, previously, FASB Statement No. 114, Accounting by Creditors for 
Impairment of a Loan, as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 and the related interest income for the years then 
ended: 

2014 2013

Recorded investment in impaired loans not requiring an
allowance for loan losses $ 54,470,000   39,750,000   

Recorded investment in impaired loans requiring an
allowance for loan losses 42,285,000   47,007,000   

Total recorded investment in impaired loans $ 96,755,000   86,757,000   

Related valuation allowance $ 13,637,000   15,337,000   
Average recorded investment in impaired loans 86,500,000   80,300,000   
Interest income recognized 1,007,000   579,000   

 

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, loans on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued (cash basis loans), 
due to delinquency over 89 days and/or due to restructurings, amounted to $131,420,175 ($51,371,855 
over 89 days and $71,384,566 restructured loans) and $105,311,122 ($36,357,648 over 89 days and 
$80,048,320 restructured loans), respectively. The additional interest income that would have been 
recorded if these loans had performed in accordance with their original terms is estimated at approximately 
$9,810,000 and $7,820,000 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

The balance of nonaccrual loans by industry sector at June 30, 2014 and 2013 were as follows: 

2014 2013

Agricultural $ 20,201,902   19,871,261   
Commercial 33,446,678   23,603,220   
Services 45,644,723   39,152,741   
Manufacturing 19,043,361   7,587,986   
Tourism 13,083,511   15,095,914   

$ 131,420,175   105,311,122   
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The balance of loans classified as troubled debt restructured by industry sector and the related effect in the 
allowance for loan losses at June 30, 2014 and 2013 is as follows: 

2014
Principal Allowance

Agricultural $ 21,548,733   2,202,794   
Commercial 21,264,379   5,889,212   
Services 35,769,369   4,847,679   
Manufacturing 8,019,210   1,064,635   
Tourism 10,458,808   333,521   

$ 97,060,499   14,337,841   
 

2013
Principal Allowance

Agricultural $ 21,707,687   864,021   
Commercial 21,014,640   6,561,489   
Services 32,729,958   6,357,573   
Manufacturing 6,154,509   703,471   
Tourism 11,898,489   1,392,519   

$ 93,505,283   15,879,073   
 

The following tables present the troubled debt restructuring modified during the years ended June 30, 2014 
and 2013: 

2014
Pre Post

modification modification

Outstanding recorded investment $ 26,371,593   26,396,303   
Number of Contracts 100   100   
Weighted average rate 5.87% 5.56%
Weighted average term (months) 71   95   
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2013
Pre Post

modification modification

Outstanding recorded investment $ 11,941,009   11,936,417   
Number of Contracts 33   33   
Weighted average rate 5.38% 5.53%
Weighted average term (months) 68   74   

 

Of the total troubled debt restructurings during 2014 and 2013, 17 contracts with a balance at June 30, 
2014 of $3,682,000 and 8 contracts with a balance at June 30, 2013 of $245,000, defaulted after their 
modifications were processed. 

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, commitments to extend credit on troubled debt restructured loans amounted to 
$403,000 and $580,000, respectively. 

Changes in the total allowance for loan losses for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were as follows: 

2014 2013

Balance, beginning of year $ 35,734,173   31,000,686   
Provision charged to operations 10,960,000   10,788,145   
Loans charged off as uncollectible (14,941,246)  (9,503,884)  
Recoveries 2,268,616   3,449,226   
Balance, end of year $ 34,021,543   35,734,173   
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The following table presents the changes and the balance in the allowance for loan losses and the recorded 
investment in gross loans by industry sector and based on impairment method for the year ended June 30, 
2014 and 2013: 

2014

Agricultural Commercial Services Manufacturing Tourism Total

Allowance for loan losses:
Beginning balance $ 2,061,237  12,305,535  15,746,072  2,537,066  3,084,263  35,734,173  
Provision charged

to operations 820,734  4,228,979  3,673,024  1,368,295  868,968  10,960,000  
Loans charged-off

as uncollectible (416,801) (6,629,048) (4,731,192) (1,033,096) (2,131,109) (14,941,246) 
Recoveries 458,879  360,008  716,211  726,667  6,851  2,268,616  

Ending balance $ 2,924,049  10,265,474  15,404,115  3,598,932  1,828,973  34,021,543  

Ending allowance
attributable to loans:

Individually evaluated for
impairment $ 2,094,044  5,563,223  4,638,304  1,110,531  230,822  13,636,924  

Collectively evaluated for
impairment 830,005  4,702,251  10,765,811  2,488,401  1,598,151  20,384,619  

Ending allowance $ 2,924,049  10,265,474  15,404,115  3,598,932  1,828,973  34,021,543  

Loans:
Individually evaluated for

impairment $ 19,812,499  29,337,759  29,612,685  8,920,341  9,072,108  96,755,392  
Collectively evaluated

for impairment 12,266,962  54,887,876  127,861,132  31,667,399  21,169,293  247,852,662  

Total loan balance $ 32,079,461  84,225,635  157,473,817  40,587,740  30,241,401  344,608,054  
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2013

Agricultural Commercial Services Manufacturing Tourism Total

Allowance for loan losses:
Beginning balance $ 2,432,530  9,886,986  13,766,960  3,872,834  1,041,376  31,000,686  
Provision charged

to operations 1,210,223  2,121,162  3,387,557  1,830,489  2,238,714  10,788,145  
Loans charged-off

as uncollectible (2,050,448) (1,566,270) (2,225,023) (3,448,396) (213,747) (9,503,884) 
Recoveries 468,932  1,863,657  816,578  282,139  17,920  3,449,226  

Ending balance $ 2,061,237  12,305,535  15,746,072  2,537,066  3,084,263  35,734,173  

Ending allowance
attributable to loans:

Individually evaluated for
impairment $ 401,410  7,413,938  5,611,234  651,416  1,259,185  15,337,183  

Collectively evaluated for
impairment 1,659,827  4,891,597  10,134,838  1,885,650  1,825,078  20,396,990  

Ending allowance $ 2,061,237  12,305,535  15,746,072  2,537,066  3,084,263  35,734,173  

Loans:
Individually evaluated for

impairment $ 17,519,633  23,816,825  26,985,842  8,163,708  10,270,768  86,756,776  
Collectively evaluated

for impairment 16,101,835  51,818,468  110,841,516  21,931,897  22,056,847  222,750,563  

Total loan balance $ 33,621,468  75,635,293  137,827,358  30,095,605  32,327,615  309,507,339  

 

(5) Capital Assets 

Capital assets activity for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was as follows: 

2014
Beginning Ending

balance Increases Decreases balance

Land $ 2,735,000  —  —  2,735,000  
Building and improvements 11,340,844  169,243  —  11,510,087  
Furniture and equipment 4,946,471  114,039  (42,705) 5,017,805  

Total cost 19,022,315  283,282  (42,705) 19,262,892  

Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization:

Building and improvements (5,324,544) (291,973) —  (5,616,517) 
Furniture and equipment (4,805,750) (69,912) 42,705  (4,832,957) 

Total accumulated
depreciation and
amortization (10,130,294) (361,885) 42,705  (10,449,474) 

Capital assets, net $ 8,892,021  (78,603) —  8,813,418  
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2013
Beginning Ending

balance Increases Decreases balance

Land $ 2,735,000  —  —  2,735,000  
Building and improvements 11,281,593  59,251  —  11,340,844  
Furniture and equipment 4,933,199  42,724  (29,452) 4,946,471  

Total cost 18,949,792  101,975  (29,452) 19,022,315  

Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization:

Building and improvements (5,035,270) (289,274) —  (5,324,544) 
Furniture and equipment (4,731,681) (103,521) 29,452  (4,805,750) 

Total accumulated
depreciation and
amortization (9,766,951) (392,795) 29,452  (10,130,294) 

Capital assets, net $ 9,182,841  (290,820) —  8,892,021  

 

The Bank’s principal premises are partially rented to various lessees under lease terms expiring at various 
future dates. Minimum future rentals to be received for the next two years ended June 30, 2015 and 2016 
are approximately $360,000 and $319,000, respectively. 

Rent revenue amounting to approximately $304,000 and $309,000 was recorded as other income in the 
accompanying 2014 and 2013 statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position, respectively. 

(6) Other Assets 

Other assets as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 consist of the following: 

2014 2013

Other real estate owned, net of allowance for losses of
$5,935,941 in 2014 and $6,872,042 in 2013 $ 6,991,835   8,169,180   

Deferred issuance costs 108,073   117,082   
Accounts receivable from other Commonwealth

component units 775,826   65,516   
Other 468,975   142,662   

Total $ 8,344,709   8,494,440   
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(7) Time Deposits 

Time deposits of $411,683,945 and $330,317,694 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, consist of 
deposits with fixed maturity dates (not exceeding 12 months) received from other governmental 
institutions, commercial banks, or other financial institutions. Governmental time deposits 
(Commonwealth and its component units) are exempt by law from the collateral requirement applicable to 
commercial financial institutions, which are depositors of public funds. Governmental time deposits at 
June 30, 2014 and 2013 amounted to approximately $390,330,000 and $290,040,000, respectively. 

Time deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more amounted to approximately $411,540,000 and 
$330,273,000 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

(8) Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase 

The Bank’s investment policies, as authorized by Act number 22 of July 24, 1985, Article 3, allow 
management to sell securities under agreements to repurchase. The following table summarizes certain 
information on securities sold under agreements to repurchase: 

2014 2013

Carrying amount at June 30 $ 45,690,000   76,200,000   
Average amount outstanding during the year 59,824,000   113,889,000   
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end 75,750,000   268,739,000   
Weighted average interest rate for the year 1.07% 1.42%
Weighted average interest rate at year-end 0.35 1.40

 

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase represent borrowings with maturities ranging from 10 to 
71 days at June 30, 2014 and from 10 to 270 days at June 30, 2013. 

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, securities sold under agreements to repurchase were collateralized with 
mortgage-backed securities, other government agencies securities, and other investments with a market 
value of $50,099,000 and $81,051,000, respectively. 

The activity for securities sold under agreements to repurchase during 2014 and 2013 was as follows: 

2014
Amounts due

Beginning Ending within
balance Increases Decreases balance one year

Securities sold under
agreement to repurchase $ 76,200,000  248,690,000  (279,200,000) 45,690,000  45,690,000  
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2013
Amounts due

Beginning Ending within
balance Increases Decreases balance one year

Securities sold under
agreement to repurchase $ 123,925,000  610,079,000  (657,804,000) 76,200,000  76,200,000  

 

(9) Promissory Notes and Other Note Payable 

Promissory notes and other note payable at June 30, 2014 and 2013 are summarized as follows: 

2014 2013

Promissory notes $ 441,214,688   703,047,620   
Other note payable 8,922,920   9,421,905   

Total $ 450,137,608   712,469,525   
 

On May 22, 2003, the Bank was authorized to issue up to $300 million in collateralized promissory notes. 
During the fiscal year 2005, the authorized amount was increased up to $500 million. During fiscal year 
2008, the Bank, through its subsidiary EDBCI, was authorized to issue an additional $275 million in 
collateralized promissory notes. The proceeds received by the Bank from the sale of these notes shall be 
invested in obligations that qualify as permitted investments under applicable laws and the investment 
guidelines adopted by the Bank. Such notes have maturities not exceeding 20 years. These notes contain 
certain put options held by the Bank and by the creditor. The put options of the Bank grant the Bank the 
exercisable right, at the Bank’s sole discretion, to require the noteholder to purchase, on established 
exercise dates, the collateral of this note at a price equal to the amortized cost of the promissory notes, as 
defined. The put option held by the noteholders permits them, on the same established dates of the Bank’s 
put option, to require the Bank to redeem the promissory notes at their outstanding amortized cost. The 
mirror put options held by the Bank are considered in accounting for the fair value of the underlying 
investments. As a result, no separate asset or obligation is recorded related to the put options. 

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the aggregate principal balance of promissory notes outstanding under these 
programs amounted to $441 million and $703 million, respectively. These notes pay interest semiannually, 
bear interest rates at June 30, 2014 ranging from 1.83% to 5.81%, and mature at various dates through 
September 27, 2032. These promissory notes are collateralized with investment securities with an 
aggregate fair value of $469,577,000, excluding the value of their corresponding put options. 

The other note payable is due to the Government Development Bank of Puerto Rico (GDB) (collateralized 
by a real estate mortgage) bears interest at the rate of 6% per annum, pays interest semiannually in 
June and December, and principal is paid each June. The note matures on June 1, 2026 and provides for 
annual payments of $1,064,300 including interest. 
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Promissory notes and other note payable activity for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was as 
follows: 

2014
Amounts due

Beginning Ending within
balance Increases Decreases balance one year

Promissory notes $ 703,047,620  —  (261,832,932) 441,214,688  —  
Other note payable 9,421,905  —  (498,985) 8,922,920  528,924  

Total promissory
notes and other
notes payable $ 712,469,525  —  (262,331,917) 450,137,608  528,924  

 
2013

Amounts due
Beginning Ending within

balance Increases Decreases balance one year

Promissory notes $ 726,140,838  150,003,356  (173,096,574) 703,047,620  —  
Other note payable 9,892,646  —  (470,741) 9,421,905  498,985  

Total promissory
notes and other
notes payable $ 736,033,484  150,003,356  (173,567,315) 712,469,525  498,985  

 

The maturities and interest payments of the promissory notes and the note payable for each of the next five 
fiscal years and thereafter are as follows: 

Principal Interest

Year ending June 30:
2015 $ 528,924   20,613,085   
2016 11,724,896   20,442,234   
2017 594,299   20,343,201   
2018 629,957   20,307,365   
2019 667,755   20,269,378   
2020–2024 271,333,498   67,194,944   
2025–2029 14,658,279   23,658,855   
2030–2034 150,000,000   15,099,583   

$ 450,137,608   207,928,645   

 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BANK FOR PUERTO RICO 
(A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2014 and 2013 

 43 (Continued) 

(10) Other Liabilities 

The activity for the other noncurrent liabilities during 2014 and 2013 was as follows: 

2014
Beginning Ending

balance Increases Decreases balance

Compensated absences $ 2,013,212   320,000   (283,623)  2,049,589   
Legal claims 667,722   —    —    667,722   
Reserve for loan guarantees 3,641,970   —    (17,800)  3,624,170   

$ 6,322,904   320,000   (301,423)  6,341,481   
 

2013
Beginning Ending

balance Increases Decreases balance

Compensated absences $ 2,123,279   372,000   (482,067)  2,013,212   
Legal claims 686,222   —    (18,500)  667,722   
Reserve for loan guarantees 5,225,937   —    (1,583,967)  3,641,970   

$ 8,035,438   372,000   (2,084,534)  6,322,904   
 

(11) Net Position 

The Bank’s net position invested in capital assets and restricted as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are 
composed of the following: 

2014 2013

Net investment in capital assets
Capital assets $ 19,262,892   19,022,315   
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (10,449,474)  (10,130,294)  
Related GDB note (8,922,920)  (9,421,905)  

Total $ (109,502)  (529,884)  

Restricted for special loan programs:
Economic Development Administration $ 3,587,156   3,653,995   
Day Care Centers Loan Fund 4,660,894   4,650,191   
State Small Business Credit Initiative 9,828,706   4,955,228   

Total $ 18,076,756   13,259,414   
 

The Bank is a recipient of two grants from the Economic Development Administration Directive System 
(EDA), subscribed by the U.S. Department of Commerce to operate a program under a Revolving Loan 
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Fund directed to assist businesses that suffered physical or economic damage due to the effects of 
Hurricane Hugo, and to advance the economic development of Puerto Rico. The Bank matched EDA’s 
award pursuant to the terms of the grant agreements. The funds received from the collection of principal 
and interest of loans granted under the program are deposited in the fund to be used to disburse new 
qualified loans. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the outstanding principal of loans granted under the terms of 
EDA Revolving Loan Fund amounted to $3,126,828 and $2,865,912, respectively, and are included in 
loans, net in the accompanying statements of net position. The grants are routinely subject to financial and 
compliance audits in accordance with the provisions of the U.S. Office of Management and Budget 
Circular A-133 or to compliance audits by EDA. The latter has the authority to determine liabilities as well 
as to limit, suspend, or terminate the federal assistance. 

On October 6, 1989, a revolving loan fund grant that was administrated by GDB was transferred to the 
Bank for administration under the same terms as when the program was established by GDB. At the time, 
such fund had a total contribution of $1,250,000 ($1,000,000 from EDA and $250,000 from GDB) and a 
portfolio consisting of 15 loans with an aggregate outstanding principal balance of $504,299. The fund was 
pooled into the fund previously administered by the Bank when the Bank reimbursed $250,000 to GDB for 
their original contribution to such fund. As a result, the Bank’s contribution to the fund equals 25% of 
EDA’s contribution to the fund. 

The Commonwealth approved Law No. 212 of August 29, 2000, as amended, which creates the Day Care 
Centers Loan Fund, for the purpose of financing the development of day care centers for children, multiple 
activity centers for elderly persons, and long-term care institutions. The Bank is responsible for the 
administration of the fund. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the outstanding principal of loans granted under the 
terms of the Day Care Centers Loan Fund amounted to $2,499,464 and $2,733,776, respectively, and are 
included in loans, net in the accompanying statements of net position. 

In September 2011, the Bank was approved an allocation of $14.5 million from the U.S. Department of the 
Treasury (Treasury) under the State Small Business Credit Initiative Act of 2010, Title 3 of the Small 
Business Jobs Act of 2010 (SSBCI), by which the United States Congress appropriated funds to Treasury 
to be allocated and disbursed to States and Territories that have created programs to increase the amount of 
capital made available by private lenders to small businesses. To accomplish this Puerto Rico will use 
$12.5 million of its allocated SSBCI funds to support the existing Loan Participation Program and 
$2 million to support the existing Venture Capital Program. As of June 30, 2014, the Bank has received 
$9.6 million of the total allocation, which was recorded as a capital contribution, and has committed 
$7.7 million under the Loan Participation Program and $1 million under the Venture Capital Program. 
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Net position restricted for the special loans programs as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 consist of the 
following: 

2014 2013

Cash and due from banks $ 7,457,754   5,760,600   
Venture capital investment 1,000,000   —    
Loans and interest receivable, net of allowance for loan

losses of $943,196 and $896,676 in 2014 and 2013,
respectively 9,604,267   8,408,251   

Other assets 173,962   520,448   

Total restricted assets 18,235,983   14,689,299   

Accounts payable and other liabilities 159,227   1,429,885   
Total restricted net assets $ 18,076,756   13,259,414   

 

(12) Interagency Agreements 

The Bank has entered into interagency agreements with various government agencies. Such agreements 
provide for the deposit of funds in the Bank amounting in the aggregate to approximately $2.8 million to 
be used for loan programs to benefit socially and economically disadvantaged families and unemployed 
persons. Loans are granted based on the requirements established by such governmental agencies and the 
Bank is responsible for the administration of the loan portfolio. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, 
these fund programs made payments of approximately $15,000 to the Bank for loans guaranteed; therefore, 
these loans are not included in the accompanying statements of net position. 

The Bank entered into an interagency agreement with the Economic Development and Commerce 
Department (a governmental unit of the Commonwealth). Such agreement provides for the transfer of the 
funds from the previously created Hurricane Georges Guarantee Loan Fund and the Education Loan 
Program Guarantee Fund to a new loan fund program. The new loan fund program grants direct loans and 
guarantees to small- and medium-sized entrepreneurs in the economic sectors of manufacturing, services, 
and commerce. Guarantee claims under Hurricane Georges Guarantee Loan Fund and Education Loan 
Program Guarantee Fund may be paid by the new fund. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the outstanding 
principal of loans granted under all the Economic Development and Commerce Department loans and loan 
guarantee programs amounted to $3,653,198 and $4,908,572, respectively, of which $3,059,171 and 
$3,395,918, respectively, are included in loans, net in the accompanying statements of net position, while 
the remaining balance had been paid to the Bank by the new fund. 

The Bank entered into an interagency agreement with the Tourism Company of Puerto Rico (a component 
unit of the Commonwealth) to create the Loan and Guarantee Tourism Fund. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
the outstanding principal of loans granted under this fund amounted to $6,684,778 and $6,857,847, 
respectively, and are included in loans, net in the accompanying statements of net position. 

On August 17, 2001, the Commonwealth approved Law No. 117, which creates the Agricultural Guarantee 
Loan Fund to secure loans granted by the Bank and commercial banks to farmers and agricultural entities. 
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This fund will be financed through annual appropriations to be provided by the Commonwealth up to 
$100 million during a four-year period. The Bank has entered into an alliance with the Commonwealth’s 
Department of Agriculture (the Department) for the administration of this fund, which among other things, 
requires that the Department establish the operational procedures of the Fund, while the Bank will 
administer the fund. At June 30, 2008, the fund had received $10 million related to the initial 
appropriation, which was deposited in the Bank. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the outstanding principal of 
all loans granted under the Agricultural Guarantee Loan Fund program amounted to $7,461,178 and 
$8,552,287, respectively, of which $5,128,560 and $5,423,230, respectively, are included in loans, net in 
the accompanying statements of net position, while the remaining balance had been paid to the Bank by the 
fund. 

The Bank entered into an interagency agreement with the Department of Agriculture (a governmental unit 
of the Commonwealth) and the Fund for the Comprehensive Development of the Agriculture, a component 
unit of the Puerto Rico Land Authority (a component unit of the Commonwealth), to create the Guarantee 
Loan Program – “La Llave para tu Agro-empresa.” At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the outstanding principal of 
loans granted under the program amounted to $631,766 and $1,160,877, respectively, of which $258,349 
and $458,716, respectively, are included in loans, net in the accompanying statements of net position, 
while the remaining balance had been paid to the Bank by the fund. 

The financial statements of the funds are audited by other independent auditors whose reports thereon for 
the year ended June 30, 2013, dated December 31, 2013, express an unqualified opinion. Audit of these 
funds for the year ended June 30, 2014 has not been completed as of issuance date of the Bank’s basic 
financial statements. These funds are not included within the Bank’s basic financial statements. 

The Bank and the governmental agencies participating in the interagency agreements described above are 
jointly liable for any litigation that may arise in connection with the administration of such loan programs. 
At June 30, 2014 and 2013, there was no pending or threatened litigation under such programs. 

(13) Commitments and Contingencies 

(a) Litigation 

At June 30, 2014, the Bank is a defendant in various lawsuits arising from the ordinary course of 
business. Management, after consultation with legal counsel, is of the opinion that the ultimate 
liability, if any, resulting from such lawsuits would not be material in relation to the Bank’s financial 
position and results of operations. 

Because of the uncertainties inherent in the evaluation of pending or threatened litigation, the Bank’s 
ultimate liability under such claims may be significantly different from management’s current 
estimate. 

(b) Loan Guarantee Program 

On March 9, 2009, the Commonwealth approved Law No. 9, which creates the Loan Guarantees 
Program for the Small and Medium Businesses. Under the program, the GDB, a component unit of 
the Commonwealth, assigned $180 million to the Bank to secure loans granted by commercial banks 
and other financial institutions ranging from $5,000 to $250,000 and in accordance with the criteria 
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established by the law and the Bank’s policies. The purpose of this program is to facilitate credit to 
enterprises affected by lack of liquidity or lack of sufficient collateral to back up their loans. At 
June 30, 2014 and 2013, the outstanding principal of loans granted under the program amounted to 
$3,050,000 and $3,080,000, respectively. 

At June 30, 2014 and 2013, total outstanding loan guarantees, including guarantees under the new 
program mentioned above, amounted to approximately $3,201,000 and $3,231,000, respectively. The 
Bank has recorded a reserve for loan guarantees amounting to approximately $1,922,000 and 
$1,938,000 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which is included in other current liabilities in 
the accompanying statements of net position. During 2011, the Bank received $10 million from the 
GDB to cover any losses that may arise from the operation of the Loan Guarantees Program 
described above. This amount was recorded in the reserve for loan guarantees under noncurrent other 
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. See note 20 on related-party transactions. 

From the reserve for loan guarantees, which as of June 30, 2014 has a balance of $3,454,000, the 
Bank reassigned during 2011 $5 million for disbursements of loans under the “Desarrollo para el 
Pueblo” program and $2 million for disbursements of loans under the “Vieques y Culebra” program. 
Up to June 30, 2014, $5.5 million have been disbursed for the two programs, leaving $1.5 million in 
the reserve for this purpose. In addition, the reserve for loan guarantees includes $1.9 million to 
cover the $3.1 million in guarantees outstanding as of June 30, 2014. See also note 20. 

(c) Other Risks 

The Bank is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, casualty, errors, and omissions and 
other losses for which the Bank carries commercial insurance. Settled claims have not exceeded 
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. Also, the Bank obtains workers’ 
compensation coverage from another component unit of the Commonwealth. 

(14) Significant Group Concentrations of Credit and Market Risk 

The Bank’s business activities are with customers located in Puerto Rico. The Bank’s loan transactions are 
all directed toward small- and medium-size businesses in all sectors of Puerto Rico’s economy. The 
collateral held on the Bank’s loans varies, but usually includes chattel and real estate mortgages. 

(15) Retirement Plans 

(a) Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The Employees’ Retirement System of the Government of Puerto Rico and its Instrumentalities 
(ERS) created pursuant to Act No. 447 of 1951, as amended, is a cost sharing multiple employer 
defined benefit pension plan sponsored by and reported as a component unit of the Commonwealth. 
All regular employees of the Bank hired before January 1, 2000 and under 55 years of age at the date 
of employment became members of the ERS as a condition to their employment. No benefits are 
payable if the participant receives a refund of their accumulated contributions. 

The System provides retirement, death, and disability benefits pursuant to legislation enacted by the 
Commonwealth’s legislature. Disability benefits are available to members for occupational and 
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nonoccupational disabilities. However, a member must have at least 10 years of service to receive 
nonoccupational disability benefits. Retirement benefits depend upon age at retirement and number 
of years of creditable service. Benefits vest after 10 years of plan participation. 

(b) Defined Contribution Plan 

The Legislature of the Commonwealth enacted Act No. 305 of 2000, which amends Act No. 447, to 
establish, among other things, a new defined benefit contribution savings plan program (System 
2000). 

System 2000 became effective on January 1, 2000. Employees participating in the System as of 
December 31, 1999 elected either to stay in the defined benefit plan or to transfer to System 2000. 
New regular employees of the government on or after January 1, 2000 became members of System 
2000. 

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan. Under this 
new plan, there is a pool of pension assets, which is invested by the System, together with those of 
the System. Benefits at retirement age will not be guaranteed by the Commonwealth. 

(c) New Defined Contribution Hybrid Program 

In April 2013, the Legislature of the Commonwealth enacted Act No. 3, which amends Acts No. 447 
of 1951 and 305 of 2000, to establish, among other things, the creation of a new defined contribution 
hybrid program and amend the terms and conditions of the benefits structure granted to active 
participants and pensioners under the previously established benefit structures administered by the 
ERS. 

The Hybrid Program became effective on July 1, 2013. Employees participating in the System as of 
June 30, 2014 retained their rights to receive the benefits earned under the previous program based 
on the accumulated salaries and years of service up to June 30, 2014. All employees of the 
government on or after July 1, 2013 became members of the Hybrid Program. 

The Hybrid Program is a defined contribution plan. Under this new plan, there is a pool of pension 
assets, which is invested by the System, together with those of the System. Benefits at retirement age 
will not be guaranteed by the Commonwealth. The annuity will be based on the employees’ 
contribution (with a minimum of 10% of the employees’ salary and no maximum amount, limited by 
annual increments of up to 0.5% of the monthly gross salary), which will be invested in one of three 
investment options. 

Pension benefits are defined as of June 30, 2013 based on the member status. Members who entered 
the ERS before April 1, 1990 and who have attained 58 years of age and at least 10 years of 
creditable service, or members who have attained 55 years of age and at least 25 years of creditable 
service, are entitled to a deferred pension plus the benefits of the new defined contribution hybrid 
program annuity. Members who have attained 57 years and at least 10 years of creditable service will 
be eligible for benefits once they have 59 years. Members who have attained 56 years and at least 
10 years of creditable service will be eligible for benefits once they have 60 years. Members who 
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have not attained 56 years and have completed at least 10 years of creditable service will be eligible 
for benefits once they have 61 years. 

Members entering the ERS on or after April 1, 1990 but before December 31, 1999 and who have 
attained 65 years are entitled to a deferred pension plus the benefits of the new defined contribution 
hybrid program annuity. 

Members entering the ERS after January 1, 2000 and who have attained 59 years as of June 30, 2013 
are entitled to the defined contribution program annuity. Members who have attained 58 years as of 
June 30, 2013 are entitled to the defined contribution program annuity once they have attained 
62 years. Members who have attained 57 years as of June 30, 2013 are entitled to the defined 
contribution program annuity once they have attained 63 years. Members who have attained 56 years 
as of June 30, 2013 are entitled to the defined contribution program annuity once they have attained 
64 years. Members who have attained 55 years or less as of June 30, 2013 are entitled to the defined 
contribution program annuity once they have attained 65 years. 

The Bank’s required contribution is 12.275% of the employees’ salary. Contribution rates are 
established commonwealth wide for all participating governmental units. Accordingly, the actuarial 
information and related disclosures attributable to the Bank’s employees are not determinable. 

Total employee contributions during the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 to the above 
plans amounted to approximately $556,000, $444,000 and $458,000, respectively. Total payroll 
covered for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was approximately $5,610,000 and $5,369,000, 
respectively. 

The Bank’s contributions during the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 to the above plans 
amounted to $689,000, $605,000, and 616,000, respectively, which represented 100% of required 
contributions. 

Employee retirement system publishes an annual report that provides information on progress made 
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. That report may be obtained by writing to 
Employees’ Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its Instrumentalities, P.O. Box 42003, 
San Juan, PR 00940-2003. 

(16) Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk 

In the normal course of business, the Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk to 
meet the financing needs of its customers and to reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. 
These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and to purchase investment and 
mortgage-backed securities, financial guarantees, and interest rate exchange agreements. These instruments 
involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of amounts recognized in the 
accompanying statements of net position. These off-balance-sheet risks are managed and monitored in 
manners similar to those used for on-balance-sheet risks. The Bank’s exposures to credit losses for lending 
commitments are represented by the contractual amount of such transactions. The notional amounts for 
other off-balance-sheet risks express the dollar volume of the transactions, but the credit risk might be 
lower. 
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At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the off-balance-sheet risks consisted of the following: 

2014 2013
(In thousands)

Financial instruments whose credit is represented by
contractual amounts:

Financial guarantees $ 3,201   3,231   
Commitments to extend credit 23,935   41,156   
Commitments to invest in venture capital 7,004   8,218   

 

Financial guarantees written are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance 
of a customer to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support private borrowing 
arrangements. The credit risk involved in issuing financial guarantees is essentially the same as that 
involved in extending loan facilities to customers. 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any 
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to 
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash 
requirements. The Bank evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount 
of collateral obtained upon extension of credit is based on management’s credit evaluation of the 
counterparty. Collateral held varies but may include property, plant, and equipment, and income-producing 
commercial properties. 

(17) Other Noninterest Income 

Other noninterest income for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 consists of the following: 

2014 2013

Rental income (note 5) $ 303,831   308,515   
(Loss) gain on sale of foreclosed assets (172,693)  12,750   
Administrative fees – other funds 42,033   43,723   
Recoveries from loan guarantees 30,800   68,317   
Miscellaneous income 232,584   278,865   

Total $ 436,555   712,170   
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(18) Other Noninterest Expenses 

Other noninterest expenses for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 consist of the following: 

2014 2013

Electricity $ 467,807   489,355   
Insurance 199,092   200,349   
Repairs and maintenance 204,933   188,473   
Telephone 40,350   43,725   
Employees trainings and seminars 10,596   3,260   
Office supplies 52,872   61,592   
Reimbursement of expenses to employees 49,218   68,161   
Dues and subscriptions 63,654   50,912   
Investment operations 28,695   34,404   
Vehicles 18,633   18,428   
Postage 25,723   31,062   
Official meetings 5,308   7,628   
Miscellaneous 436,156   449,223   

Subtotal 1,603,037   1,646,572   

Provision for losses on loan guarantees 16,250   1,061,855   
Provision for losses on foreclosed assets 900,000   1,000,000   

Total $ 2,519,287   3,708,427   
 

(19) Related-Party Transactions 

On February 1, 2010, the Governor of Puerto Rico issued Executive Order OE-2010-005, which reassigned 
funds remaining from the local economic stimulus plan approved under Law No. 9 of the Commonwealth 
in March 9, 2009. In accordance with this order, the Bank received from GDB $41,250,000 to implement a 
program designed to promote the economic capacity of small- and medium-size enterprises. Of this total, 
the Bank recorded $30 million as a capital contribution aimed to generate new direct loans, $10 million as 
a reserve for possible losses from the Loan Guarantee Program created by the abovementioned Law No. 9, 
and $1,250,000 as an accrual for expenses related to a government wide effort to promote economic 
development of the small- and medium-size enterprise sector. 

As mentioned in note 13 above, during 2011, $7 million from the reserve for possible losses from the Loan 
Guarantee Program were reassigned for the disbursement of loans under the “Desarrollo para el Pueblo” 
and “Vieques y Culebra” programs. Accordingly, approximately $1,500 and $1,363,000 were disbursed 
under these programs during 2014 and 2013, respectively, and reclassified from the reserve account to 
capital contribution. In addition, during 2014 and 2013, the Bank disbursed approximately $16,250 and 
$1,095,000, respectively, to pay loan guarantees to commercial banks under the Loan Guarantee Program 
created by the abovementioned Law No. 9. 
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(20) Subsequent Events 

The Bank evaluated subsequent events through October 22, 2014, the date the basic financial statements 
were available to be issued. 




